
 

 
 

 

 
 

Informal Consultative Meeting of 
Audit Committee 
 
 

Thursday 29th July 2021 
10.00 am 
 

A virtual meeting via Zoom Meeting 
Software 

 
 

 
The following members are requested to attend this meeting: 
 

Chairman: Martin Carnell 
Vice-chairman: Mike Hewitson 
 
Robin Bastable 
Mike Best 
Dave Bulmer 
 

Malcolm Cavill 
Brian Hamilton 
Tim Kerley 
 

Paul Maxwell 
Jeny Snell 
 
 

Any members of the public wishing to address the meeting at Public Question Time 
need to email democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk by 9.00am Wednesday 28th July 
2021. 
 
The meeting will be viewable online by selecting the committee meeting at: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA 
 
For further information on the items to be discussed, please contact 
democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk 
 

This Agenda was issued on Wednesday 21 July 2021. 
 

Nicola Hix, Director, Strategy & Support Services 

 
           

This information is also available on our website  
www.southsomerset.gov.uk and via the mod.gov app 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA
mailto:democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk
http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/


Information for the Public 
 
In light of the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19), Audit Committee will meet virtually via video-
conferencing to consider reports. As of 7 May 2021 some interim arrangements are in place for 
committee meetings. 
 
At the meeting of Full Council on 15 April 2021 it was agreed to make the following changes to 
the Council’s Constitution: 
 

a) To continue to enable members to hold remote, virtual meetings using available 
technology; 
 

b) To amend Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) of the Council’s Constitution to allow 
those remote meetings to function as consultative bodies and delegate decisions, 
including Executive and Quasi-Judicial decisions, that would have been taken by those 
meetings if the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of 
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020 had continued in force to the Chief Executive (or the relevant Director in the Chief 
Executive’s absence) in consultation with those meetings and those members to whom 
the decision would otherwise have been delegated under Part 3 of the Constitution; 
 

c) The delegated authority given under (b) will expire on 31 July 2021 unless continued by a 
future decision of this Council; 
 

For full details and to view the report please see - 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=2981&Ver=4 
 
Further to the above, at the meeting of Full Council on 8 July 2021, it was agreed to extend the 
arrangements for a further 6 months to 8 January 2022. 
 
For full details and to view the report please see -  
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=3033&Ver=4 
 
Information about Audit Committee 
 
The purpose of the Audit Committee is to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the 
risk management framework and the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of 
the authority’s financial and non-financial performance, to the extent that it affects the authority’s 
exposure to risk and weakens the control environment and to oversee the financial reporting 
process. 
 
The Audit Committee should review the Code of Corporate Governance seeking assurance 
where appropriate from the Executive or referring matters to management on the scrutiny 
function. 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are: 
 
Internal Audit Activity 
 
1. To approve the Internal Audit Charter and annual Internal Audit Plan; 

2. To receive quarterly summaries of Internal Audit reports and seek assurance from 
management that action has been taken; 

3. To receive an annual summary report and opinion, and consider the level of assurance it 
provides on the council’s governance arrangements;  

https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=2981&Ver=4


 

 

4. To monitor the action plans for Internal Audit reports assessed as “partial” or “no 
assurance;” 

5. To consider specific internal audit reports as requested by the Head of Internal Audit, and 
monitor the implementation of agreed management actions;  

6. To receive an annual report to review the effectiveness of internal audit to ensure 
compliance with statutory requirements and the level of assurance it provides on the 
council’s governance arrangements;  

 
External Audit Activity 
 
7. To consider and note the annual external Audit Plan and Fees;  

8. To consider the reports of external audit including the Annual Audit Letter and seek 
assurance from management that action has been taken; 

 
Regulatory Framework 
 
9. To consider the effectiveness of SSDC’s risk management arrangements, the control 

environment and associated anti-fraud and corruption arrangements and seek assurance 
from management that action is being taken; 

10. To review the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and monitor associated action 
plans; 

11. To review the Local Code of Corporate Governance and ensure it reflects best 
governance practice. This will include regular reviews of part of the Council’s Constitution 
and an overview of risk management; 

12. To receive reports from management on the promotion of good corporate governance; 
 
Financial Management and Accounts 
 
13. To review and approve the annual Statement of Accounts, external auditor’s opinion and 

reports to members and monitor management action in response to issues raised; 

14. To provide a scrutiny role in Treasury Management matters including regular monitoring 
of treasury activity and practices. The committee will also review and recommend the 
Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy, MRP 
Strategy, and Prudential Indicators to Council; 

15. To review and recommend to Council changes to Financial Procedure Rules and 
Procurement Procedure Rules; 

 
Overall Governance 
 
16. The Audit Committee can request of the Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer, or 

the Chief Executive (Head of Paid Services) a report (including an independent review) 
on any matter covered within these Terms of Reference; 

17. The Audit Committee will request action through District Executive if any issue remains 
unresolved; 

18. The Audit Committee will report to each full Council a summary of its activities.  
 
 

Members questions on reports prior to the Meeting 
 

Members of the Committee are requested to contact report authors on points of clarification prior 
to the Committee meeting. 
 



Audit Committee 
 
Meetings of the Audit Committee are usually held bi-monthly including at least one meeting with 
the Council’s external auditor, although in practice the external auditor attends more frequently. 
However during the coronavirus pandemic these meetings will be held remotely via Zoom video-
conferencing and the starting time may vary.  
 
For more details on the regulations regarding remote/virtual meetings please see the Local 
Authorities and Police and Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 as part of the Coronavirus Act 
2020. 
 
Agendas and minutes of this committee are published on the Council’s website at 
http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1 
 
Agendas and minutes can also be viewed via the mod.gov app (free) available for iPads and 
Android devices. Search for ‘mod.gov’ in the app store for your device, install, and select ‘South 
Somerset’ from the list of publishers and then select the committees of interest. A wi-fi signal will 
be required for a very short time to download an agenda but once downloaded, documents will 
be viewable offline. 
 

 

Public participation at meetings (held via Zoom) 
 

Public question time 

 
We recognise that these are challenging times but we still value the public’s contribution to our 
virtual meetings.  
 
If you would like to address the virtual meeting during Public Question Time, please email 
democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk by 9.00am on 28th July 2021. When you have registered, the 
Chairman will invite you to speak at the appropriate time during the virtual meeting.  
 
The period allowed for participation in Public Question Time shall not exceed 15 minutes except 
with the consent of the Chairman and members of the Committee. Each individual speaker shall 
be restricted to a total of three minutes. 
 
This meeting will be streamed online via YouTube at: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA 
 
 
Virtual meeting etiquette:  
 

 Consider joining the meeting early to ensure your technology is working correctly. 

 Please note that we will mute all public attendees to minimise background noise.  If you 
have registered to speak during the virtual meeting, the Chairman or Administrator will 
un-mute your microphone at the appropriate time.  We also respectfully request that you 
turn off video cameras until asked to speak. 

 Each individual speaker shall be restricted to a total of three minutes. 

 When speaking, keep your points clear and concise. 

 Please speak clearly – the Councillors are interested in your comments. 
 
 

 

 

http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA


 

 

Recording and photography at council meetings 
 
Recording of council meetings is permitted, however anyone wishing to do so should let the 
Chairperson of the meeting know prior to the start of the meeting. The recording should be overt 
and clearly visible to anyone at the meeting, but non-disruptive. If someone is recording the 
meeting, the Chairman will make an announcement at the beginning of the meeting. If anyone 
making public representation does not wish to be recorded they must let the Chairperson know. 
 
The full ‘Policy on Audio/Visual Recording and Photography at Council Meetings’ can be viewed 
online at:  
http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/documents/s3327/Policy%20on%20the%20recording%20of
%20council%20meetings.pdf 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District Council 
under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory functions on 
behalf of the district.  Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for advice where 
they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset District Council - 
LA100019471 - 2021. 
 

 

http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/documents/s3327/Policy%20on%20the%20recording%20of%20council%20meetings.pdf
http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/documents/s3327/Policy%20on%20the%20recording%20of%20council%20meetings.pdf


Informal Consultative Meeting of Audit Committee 
 
Thursday 29 July 2021 
 
Agenda 
 

Preliminary Items 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence  

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (as amended 26 February 2015), 
which includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), personal and 
prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any personal interests 
(and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial") in relation to any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

3.   Public question time  

 

4.   Date of next meeting  

 
Councillors are requested to note that the next Audit Committee meeting is scheduled to be held 
at 10.00am on 30th September 2021, via Zoom virtual software. 

Items for Discussion 
 

5.   Internal Audit Progress Report 2021-22 (Pages 7 - 28) 

 

6.   Audit Committee Forward Plan (Pages 29 - 30) 

 
 



 

 

SWAP Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 

Unrestricted 

 
 
 

 
 SWAP Internal Audit Progress Report 2021-22 
 

SWAP CEO: Dave Hill – Chief Executive - SWAP 
Lead Officer: Alastair Woodland – Assistant Director 
Contact Details: Alastair.Woodland@SWAPAudit.co.uk 

 
 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To update members on the Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 progress and bring to their 
attention any significant findings identified through our work.  
 

Public Interest 
 

Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. 
Their function is to provide an independent and high-level resource to support good 
governance and strong public financial management.  
 

The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance 
independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the 
internal control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and governance 
processes.  
 

Recommendations 
 

1. Members are asked to note progress made in delivery of the 2021/22 internal 
audit plan and the significant findings since the previous update.  

 

Background 
 
The Internal Audit function plays a central role in corporate governance by providing 
independent assurance to the Audit Committee over the effectiveness of internal 
controls, governance and risk management. The 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan was 
approved by the Audit Committee at its March 2021 meeting and is to provide 
independent and objective assurance on SSDC’s Internal Control Environment and 
this work will support the Annual Governance Statement.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

 

SWAP Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 

Unrestricted 

 

Report Detail 
 
This report summarises the work of the Council’s Internal Audit Service and provides:  
 

 Details of any new significant weaknesses identified during internal audit work 
completed since the last report to the committee in May 2021.  

 

 A schedule of audits completed during the period, detailing their respective 
assurance opinion rating, the number of recommendations and the respective 
priority rankings of these. 

 
 
Please refer to the attached SWAP Progress Report 2021-22 for further details.  
 

 

Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications associated with these recommendations.   
 

 

Council Plan Implications  
 
Delivery of corporate objectives requires strong internal control. The attached report 
provides a summary of the audit work carried out to date this year by the Council’s 
internal auditors, SWAP Internal Audit Services. 

 

Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications  
 
There are no implications arising from this report.  
.   

 
Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
There are no implications arising from this report.  
 
 

Background Papers 
 Internal Audit Plan and Charter 2021-22 March 2021 

 Internal Audit Outturn Report May 2021 
 

Page 8



 

Internal Audit  Risk  Special Investigations  Consultancy 

Unrestricted 

 
 
 
 
 
 

South Somerset District Council 
Report of Internal Audit Activity 
2021-22 Progress Update Report July 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 9



 

 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 1 

 
Unrestricted 

Contents 
 

The contacts at SWAP in  
connection with this report are: 
 
David Hill 
Chief Executive  
Tel: 020 8142 5030 
david.hill@swapaudit.co.uk 
 
Alastair Woodland 
Assistant Director 
Tel:  07720312467 
alastair.woodland@swapaudit.co.uk 
 
Adam William 
Principal Auditor 
Tel:  020 8142 5030 
Adam.williams@SWAPaudit.co.uk  
 

  Summary:  

  Contents Page 1 

  Role of Internal Audit Page 2 

  Control Assurance:  

  Internal Audit Work Programme Update Page 3 

  Significant Corporate Risks Page 4 

  Summary of Limited or No Assurance Opinions Pages 4-5 

  Summary of Follow up Audits Pages 5-6 

  Summary of other relevant audit work Pages 7- 11 

    

  Plan Performance:  

  SSDC Plan Performance Page 12 

  Changes to the Audit Plan Page 13-14 

    

  Appendices:  

  Appendix A – Audit Framework Definitions Page 15 

  Appendix B – Summary of Work Plan Pages 16-19 

     

P
age 10



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 2 

 Unrestricted 

Our audit activity is split between: 
 
 Operational Audit 
 Governance Audit 
 Key Control Audit 
 IT Audit 
 Grants 
 Other Reviews 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Role of Internal Audit 

  
 The Internal Audit service for the South Somerset District Council is provided by South West Audit Partnership 

Limited (SWAP).  SWAP is a Local Authority controlled Company.  SWAP has adopted and works to the Standards 
of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS), and also follows the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit.  The Partnership is also guided 
by the Internal Audit Charter approved by the Audit and Governance Committee at its meeting in March 2021. 
 
Internal Audit provides an independent and objective opinion on the Authority’s control environment by 
evaluating its effectiveness.  Primarily the work includes: 

 Operational Audit Reviews 
 Cross Cutting Governance Audits 
 Annual Review of Key Financial System Controls 
 IT Audits 
 Grants 
 Other Special or Unplanned Review 

 

Internal Audit work is largely driven by an Annual Audit Plan.  This is approved by the Section 151 Officer, 
following consultation with the Senior Management Team.  This year’s Audit Plan was reported to and approved 
by this Committee at its meeting in March 2021. Audit assignments are undertaken in accordance with this Plan 
to assess current levels of governance, control and risk.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 11



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 3 

 

 
Outturn to Date: 
 
We rank our recommendations on a 
scale of 1 to 3, with 3 being minor or 
administrative concerns to 1 being 
areas of major concern requiring 
immediate corrective action. 

  Internal Audit Work Programme Update 

  
 The schedule provided at Appendix B contains a list of all audits as agreed in the Annual Audit Plan 2021/22. It is 

important that Members are aware of the status of all audits and that this information helps them place reliance 
on the work of Internal Audit and its ability to complete the plan as agreed. 
 
Each completed assignment includes its respective “assurance opinion” rating together with the number and 
relative ranking of recommendations that have been raised with management.  In such cases, the Committee can 
take assurance that improvement actions have been agreed with management to address these. The assurance 
opinion ratings have been determined in accordance with the Internal Audit “Audit Framework Definitions” as 
detailed on Appendix A of this document. 
 
The following table summarises Audits finalised since the last update in May 2021:   
 

Audit Area Opinion 

Information Governance GDPR Follow up Non-Opinion 

Transformation Closedown Non-Opinion  

Fraud Risk Impact of Covid-19  Reasonable  

Risk Management  Reasonable  

Commercial Investments  Substantial  

Community Infrastructure Levy  Substantial 

Section 106 Limited 

Boden Mill Site and Chard Regeneration Scheme Accounts  Non-Opinion 

Growth Deal Capital Expenditure (YIC Phase 2) Non-Opinion  
 
 
 

P
age 12



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 4 

 

Significant Corporate Risks 
 
Identified Significant Corporate Risks 
should be brought to the attention of 
the Audit Committee. 

  Significant Corporate Risks 

  
 We provide a definition of the 3 Risk Levels applied within audit reports and these are detailed in Appendix A.  For 

those audits which have reached report stage through the year, I will report risks we have assessed as ‘High’.    
  
In this update there are no final reports included with significant corporate risks. 
 

Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 

 Limited or No Assurance 
Opinions 

 Follow-ups 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Summary of Work Completed – Limited or No Assurance Opinions 

  
 In this update there was one final reports with limited or no assurance opinions.  

 
Section 106 – Limited Assurance 
 
This audit covered Section 106 and the Community Infrastructure Levy. The work completed identified that while 
the CIL was very well controlled there were weaknesses in the S106 processes. This has resulted in us providing 
split assurance for the work.  
 
Key findings from the review were:  

 There is not a complete and accurate record of all S106 agreements in place although work is being 
undertaken to rectify. This should be completed before uploading onto Exacom.  

 The process to monitor contributions that could be returned to developers is ineffective and the Localities 
team are not notified when S106 contributions are received. The spreadsheet maintained by the Localities 
team has not been updated since 2019.  

 No reports are produced for Senior Management or Members on the S106 contributions received and 
spent. The implementation of Exacom should enable valuable reports to be produced. Having a public 
facing version of Exacom will enable live data to be reviewed by interested parties.  

 The process for monitoring and managing S106 management and monitoring is currently unclear. There 
are many different services involved in the process but there is only one Officer in post to monitor and 
manage both S106 contributions, Community Infrastructure Levy and implement Exacom.  

 

P
age 13



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 5 

 

 
Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 

 Limited or No Assurance 
Opinions 

 Follow-ups 
 

  Summary of Work Completed  

  
 A new system is expected to be implemented this financial year. Work will be needed to ensure the data entered 

is complete and accurate. It is hoped that the new system will enable regular reporting to begin and allow for 
easier monitoring across all relevant teams.  Actions to address the weaknesses should be completed by November 
and the public facing version of Exacom by April 2022.  We have added a follow up for later in 2021-22.  

  Summary of Work Completed – Follow up Audits 

  
Information Governance/GDPR - Follow Up 
 
Limited assurance was given on the original audit completed in 2019/20. A follow up was conducted to assess the 
progress made against the recommendations raised. The table below shows the progress recorded.  
 

 
 
The Coronavirus has had an impact on the work that has been able to do around the recommendations made. 
While this has sped up the completion of some of the recommendations it has also hindered some.  
 
To summarise the recommendations outstanding and in progress as at April 2021:   
 
 

P
age 14



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 6 

 

Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 

 Limited or No Assurance 
Opinions 

 Follow-ups 
 

 
Summary of Work Completed – Follow up Audits 

  
 Priority 1 Recommendation - the DPO ensures the Information Asset Register is fully updated and a review process 

is introduced to ensure it stays up to date and accurate.  
 

The register has now been reviewed by the Data Protection Officer. This was completed during 2020-21 with 
emails sent out to all the information asset owners asking them to review their information ahead of the 
Brexit deadline. However, a process for a review has not been put in to place yet. A target date of August 
2021 has been set to complete this.  

 
 
Priority 2 Recommendation – the DPO ensures that each service area has a privacy policy introduced and that the 
privacy notices are updated to clearly state the legal basis for processing data and the specified purpose of 
processing.  

There was work planned to complete these however, this has not been completed by the different services 
due to covid-19 as teams were either expected to pick up additional work to deal with the Pandemic or 
redeployed to help. It has forced a re-evaluation of priorities for the year. A revised target date has been set 
for the end of July 2021. 

 
 
Priority 2 Recommendation - the DPO ensures a retention policy is drafted and processes are put in place for all 
services and ensures data is only retained during the retention period.  
 

The retention schedule has been put on the council portal so all staff have access to it. However, Legal have 
not been able to review it and it may now be out of date or not relevant to the services. Before we can say 
this recommendation is complete the retention schedule needs to be reviewed.  

 
 
 
 

P
age 15



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 7 

 

Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 
 

 
Summary of Work Completed 

  
 The following Audits are being reported to Members as these are important areas of governance and risk which 

Members should be aware of the outcomes from our work given their role in oversight of governance, risk and 
control. 
 
Transformation Closedown – Non-Opinion 
 
This audit was to review the transformation programme and identify what lessons needed to be learnt from the  
Programme. The audit identified lessons to be learnt in relation to: 

 Technology  
 Benefits Realisation 
 Staffing requirements and role definition 
 Performance/Data Collection  

 
The Key findings from this audit are in the table below:  
 

 The Council were ambitious in what they wanted to deliver in the timeframe.   Several of the 
transformation objectives were heavily dependent on the use of technology and the Council did not fully 
understand the resources required to fully implement all activities at the outset of the project. 

 There was no process in place for monitoring and reporting on achievement of non-financial benefits 
during the transformation programme.    

 Staffing numbers were reduced as part of the transformation programme, however the programme had 
not fully achieved its planned efficiencies at the points numbers were reduced. This has resulted in 
increased work for remaining staff. Additional resources post-transformation were brought in to help 
reduce the pressure on staff. In Planning and Legal staff numbers were reduced but the planned new 
processes or efficiencies were not introduced in the planned timeframe, putting pressure on the Council 
to meet its service delivery standards in these areas and putting pressure on the staff’s wellbeing. 

 The Council achieved their financial savings target as part of the transformation programme, with the 
revised operating model coming into effect on 1st January 2019. 

P
age 16



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 8 

 

Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 

  Summary of Work Completed 

  
  The recruitment and redundancy process were well managed and controlled which enabled the Council 

to ensure they had the opportunity reduce the impact of knowledge drain from those who did leave the 
organisation during the transformation process. 

 The introduction of Agile working has been a success and allowed for an easier transition to working 
from home during the Covid-19 Pandemic than would have been possible if this had not been progressed 
as part of the transformation programme. 

 
The audit also assessed the Councils progress against the non-financial Benefits originally identified in the Business 
case. The graph below shows the results of this as a RAG status. This does not include the financial benefits as this 
covered in an earlier piece of work.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Benefits realisation acheivements

Green Amber Red Unable to Assess

P
age 17



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 9 

 

Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 

 
Summary of Work Completed 

  
 Fraud Risk Impact of Covid-19 – Reasonable Assurance 

 
It is widely accepted that fraud risks increase in times of change or crisis. Due to the ongoing pandemic, we carried 
out an audit to assess what impact Covid-19 was having on the fraud risks the Council face. The audit assed the 
following areas as part of this work: Governance, Covid-19 Grants, Procurement, ICT/Cyber/Data Security, 
Payroll/Recruitment and staff. The assessments for these areas is shown below: 
 
 

 
 
The main findings from this review is that no Fraud Risk Assessment has been undertaken by the Council. SWAP is 
in the process of completing a Fraud Risk Assessment for SSDC to help identify weaknesses in their current controls 
across services. The results of this Fraud Risk Assessment will be shared with Senior Management and Members 
of the Audit Committee to assist in their oversight role on counter fraud and corruption.   
 
Another finding was that the Pandemic reduced the level of performance reporting being undertaken by SSDC. 
This was to help staff to focus on the Pandemic response but reduced the oversight of Senior Managers and 
Members.   
 
 
 

P
age 18



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 10 

 

Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 

  Summary of Work Completed 

  
 Risk Management – Reasonable Assurance  

 
Support and advise has previously been provided while the new risk management process was being implemented. 
This audit was the first time since implementation that we have provided an assurance opinion on the current 
process. The audit assessed the below controls: 

 Risk Management Policy in place which underpins strategy for the 
identification/assessment/management of risks.  

 Staff and member training and knowledge/awareness surrounding risk management. 
 Central repository of risks at both a strategic and operational level. 
 Risks regularly reviewed and reported to SLT and Members. 
 Risk Management is embedded into the culture of the organisation. 
 Central repository for opportunities identified at both a strategic and operational level. 

 
The audit was given reasonable assurance. The key findings from this work were: 

 Findings and actions from internal/external audits are not integrated into the risk management process. 
 Risk Management training requirements need to be identified across staff and Members and then 

training rolled out as appropriate and in accordance with involvement in the risk management process. 
 There are no arrangements for intelligence/information sharing between risk and insurance officers. A 

review will be carried out into risk appetite thresholds and scoring with an independent risk consultant. 
 

 
Commercial Investments – Calculation of Returns & Reporting – Substantial Assurance  
 
The review of commercial investments focused on the below controls:  

 Investment income is clearly recorded on receipt and all relevant records updated.  
 There is a clear and consistent approach to calculating levels of gross income to me moved to reserves 

and MRP by finance.  
 There is a clear and consistent approach to calculating income data to be reported to Members.  

P
age 19



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 11 

 

Completed Assignments: 
 
Summary of work completed with a 
focus on the high priority issues that 
we believe should be brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee. 
 

  Summary of Work Completed 

  
  Data in reports to Members can be directly limed back to the original calculations.  

 Changes to processes needed to manage the impact of Covid-19 have been identified, recorded, and 
implemented. 

 
 
Key findings for this work were that reports to Members could provide more information on tenants that were 
missing payments to improve the transparency. We also identified that there is no reconciliation between the 
finance records and the commercial team records. All invoices are raised on the financial system so this is just to 
confirm both records tally and any changes in rents are recorded and updated across all records.  
 
Overall, there was a clear process in place to ensure that the relevant contributions are made for reserves, 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and interest for all the investment properties. Budget monitoring is 
undertaken for commercial investments and can be clearly reported to Members as part of the regular monitoring 
processes should large variances occur.   
 

It should be notes that the rules regarding the use of the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) have been changed. 
Now if a Council has any plans to purchase property for investment purposes, they are no longer allowed to access 
the PWLB for loans for this or any other purpose. This has the potential to impact on the Council’s future projects. 
We note that in the last two years SSDC have not used the PWLB for any loans and that the Council does have 
other options for borrowing money.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

P
age 20



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 12 

 

 
The Assistant Director for SWAP 
reports performance on a regular 
basis to the SWAP Management and 
Partnership Boards. 
 
 

  SWAP Performance 

  
 SWAP now provides the Internal Audit service for 24 public sector bodies.  SWAP performance is subject to regular 

monitoring review by both the Board and the Member Meetings. The respective outturn performance results for 
South Somerset District Council for the 2021/22 (as of 05 July 2021) were as follows: 

  

Performance Target Target Year End Average Performance 

Audit Plan – Percentage Progress 
Final, Draft and Discussion 

In progress 
Yet to complete 

>90% 
14% 
9% 

77% 

Quality of Audit Work 
Customer Satisfaction Questionnaire >95% 

Too early to report 
 

Outcomes from Audit Work 
Value to the Organisation 

(client view of whether our audit work met 
or exceeded expectations, in terms of value 

to their area) 
 

>95% 

 
 

 
 
  

P
age 21



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 13 

 Unrestricted 

We keep our audit plans under regular 
review so as to ensure that we are 
auditing the right things at the right 
time. Due to Covid-19 the plan priority 
areas will be agreed on a quarter-by-
quarter basis.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Approved Changes to the Plan 

  
The audit plan for 2021/22 is detailed in Appendix B.  The Plan is flexible throughout the year and targeted short-
term priorities as agreed with SLT on a quarterly basis. Since the 2021-22 plan was agreed in March 2021 the 
below changes have been made.  
 
Additional Pieces of work  
 
At the time of agreeing the audit plan in March 2021 a provision for ICT reviews was included within the plan. 
Following completion of the Cyber Security and ICT Governance reviews a full detailed schedule has now been 
agreed for 2021-22. The schedule includes two options for each quarter of which one review will be delivered. 
The schedule for ICT reviews is as follows:   
 
 Q1 - NEW: Patch Management 
 Q2 - NEW: Software Licensing or User Access Management Arrangements has been added as an ICT audit for 

Q2.  One of these will be completed to cover the Cyber Security Focused Review.  
 Q3 - NEW: Incident Management, BCP & DR or Information Security (IS) Governance, Policy, Training & 

Compliance as been added as an ICT audit for Q3. One of these will be completed to cover the 
Governance/Digital Review.   

 
 
The following reviews have been added to the Audit Plan to undertake follow up work on areas where control 
weaknesses have been identified. This is to provide assurance to Senior Management and the Audit Committee 
that areas given ‘limited’ or ‘No’ Assurance have implemented the recommendations raised. 
 
NEW: Income Generation Follow up: Added to Q4 as original work finalised after the original plan was submitted.  
NEW: S106 Follow up: Added to Q4 
 
 
  

P
age 22



Internal Audit Plan Progress 2021-22 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 14 

 

We keep our audit plans under regular 
review so as to ensure that we are 
auditing the right things at the right 
time. Due to Covid-19 the plan priority 
areas will be agreed on a quarter-by-
quarter basis.  
 

 Approved Changes to the Plan 

  
 Following a review with SLT the following audits have been deferred and have been added to the rolling plan so 

these areas stay on the Audit radar:   
 
 Q1 Complaint Procedures: The new Monitoring Officer is reviewing these arrangements so an audit review 

will be conducted at a later date once the new arrangements have been implemented.  
 Q2 Planning policy Change – Phosphate: There is still no solution in place and therefore nothing to review at 

this time. 
 Q3 Decarbonisation Grant: SSDC have further work to do before we undertake a review in this area. 

 
 

Due to change in arrangements the following review has been removed from the Audit Plan as it is no longer 
applicable:  

 
 Q1 Restart Grants: this has been removed from the plan.  The original work was to support the checking of 

bank details. This is now being completed using NFI to check the details match the business name.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 23



Internal Audit Definitions                                                                                                                                    Appendix A 
 

 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 15 

 Unrestricted 

Assurance Definitions 

No Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk 
management and control are inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management and 
control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for 
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Substantial A sound system of governance, risk management and control exist, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied 
to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Non-
Opinion/Advisory 

In addition to our opinion-based work we will provide consultancy services. The “advice” offered by Internal Audit in its consultancy role may 
include risk analysis and evaluation, developing potential solutions to problems and providing controls assurance. 

 

Definition of Corporate Risks   Categorisation of Recommendations  

Risk Reporting Implications 
 In addition to the corporate risk assessment it is important that management know 

how important the recommendation is to their service. Each recommendation has 
been given a priority rating at service level with the following definitions: 

High 
Issues that we consider need to be brought to the 
attention of both Senior Management and the Audit 
Committee. 

 
Priority 1 

Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the service’s 
business processes and require the immediate attention of 
management. 

Medium Issues which should be addressed by management in 
their areas of responsibility. 

 
Priority 2 Important findings that need to be resolved by management. 

Low Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some 
improvement can be made. 

 
Priority 3 Finding that requires attention. 

 

P
age 24



Summary of Work Plan             Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 16 

 

 

Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion 
No 
of 

Rec 

1 = 
Major  3 = 

Minor 
Comments Recommendation 

1 2 3 

Completed Work 
Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance 

Boden Mill & Chard Regeneration 
Scheme Accounts Review Final Advisory 0 0 0 0  

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance 

New: Growth Deal Capital Expenditure 
Certification Final Advisory 0 0 0 0  

Reporting 

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance 

Yeovil Cemetery & Crematorium 
Annual Accounts  Draft       

In Progress 

ICT  New: Patch Management In Progress       

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance Procurement  In Progress       

Not Started 
Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance Covid-19 Discretionary grants  Not Started       

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance 

Covid-19 Grants – Post Payment 
Assurance  Not Started       

Follow Up Project Governance Regeneration 
Projects Follow Up  Not Started       

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance Chard Regeneration Project Not Started       

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance Covid-19 - External Recovery plan Not Started       

P
age 25



Summary of Work Plan             Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 17 

 

Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion 
No 
of 

Rec 

1 = 
Major  3 = 

Minor 
Comments Recommendation 

1 2 3 
Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance 

Covid-19 - Financial Impacts and 
Lessons learned Not Started       

Follow Up Homelessness Follow Up Not Started       

ICT Software Licensing OR User Access 
Management arrangements Not Started       

Key Control Council Tax & NNDR Not Started       

Key Control Debtors Not Started       

Key Control Housing Benefit Not Started       

Operational  Health & Safety Framework Not Started       

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance Opium arrangements Not Started       

ICT 

Incident management, BCP & DR OR 
Information Security (IS) – 
governance, policy training and 
compliance 

Not Started       

Fraud, Corruption 
and Governance Commercial investments Not Started       

Follow Up NEW: Income Generation Follow up Not Started       

Follow Up NEW: S106 Not Started       

P
age 26



Summary of Work Plan             Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 18 

 

Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion 
No 
of 

Rec 

1 = 
Major  3 = 

Minor 
Comments Recommendation 

1 2 3 

Deferred or Removed 

 Complaint Procedures  
 

 

 Restart Grants  
 

Removed: Assurance through NFI checking 

 Planning policy Change - Phosphate  
 

 

 Decarbonisation Grant  
 

 

Outstanding From 2020/21  

Transformation  Transformation Closedown Final Non-
Opinion - - - - See Pages 7 & 8 

Operational  S106  Final Limited 4 - 4 - Work completed as 1 audit, but 
separate opinions given due to 
different processes in place for 
each element.  See pages 4 & 5 Operational CIL Final Substantial 1 - - 1 

Governance Fraud 
& Corruption Fraud Risk Impact of Covid-19 Final Reasonable 5 - 3 2 See Page 9 

Governance Fraud 
& Corruption Risk Management Final Reasonable 4 - - 4 See Page 10 

Follow Up Information Governance GDPR Follow 
Up  Final Non-

Opinion - - - - See pages 5 & 6 

P
age 27



Summary of Work Plan             Appendix B 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. Page 19 

 

Audit Type Audit Area Status Opinion 
No 
of 

Rec 

1 = 
Major  3 = 

Minor 
Comments Recommendation 

1 2 3 
Governance Fraud 
& Corruption 

Commercial investments – 
Calculations of Returns  Final  Substantial  3 - - 3 See Pages 10 & 11 

Governance Fraud 
& Corruption Fraud Risk Assessment  In Progress       

 

 

P
age 28



 

 
 

Audit Committee Forward Plan  
 

Director: Nicola Hix, Strategy and Support Services 
Lead Officer: Karen Watling, S151 Officer 
Case Office: Michelle Mainwaring, Case Officer (Strategy & Commissioning) 
Contact Details: michelle.mainwaring@southsomerset.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 
This report informs Members of the agreed Audit Committee Forward Plan. 

 
Recommendations 

Members are asked to note and comment upon the proposed Audit Committee 
Forward Plan as attached.  

Audit Forward Plan  
 
The forward plan sets out items and issues to be discussed over the coming few 
months and is reviewed annually. 
 
Items marked in italics are not yet confirmed. 

 
Background Papers  
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 

Audit Committee Forward Plan  
 

Meeting Date Item Responsible Officer 

30th 
September 
21 
 

Redmond Review Consultation S151 Officer 

28th  October 
21  

Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 
2021/22 – Q2 

Alastair Woodland, Assistant 
Director (SWAP) 

Treasury Management Practices Lead Specialist – Finance (Deputy 
S151 Officer) 

Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Performance and Strategy Update (to go on 
to Council) 

Lead Specialist – Finance (Deputy 
S151 Officer) 

External Audit – Annual Auditors Report Beth Garner - Manager (Grant 
Thornton) 

TBC Annual Governance Statement 
S151 Officer 

 External Audit – Audit Findings Report  
Beth Garner - Manager (Grant 
Thornton) 

 Approve Annual Statement of Accounts 
Lead Specialist – Finance (Deputy 
S151 Officer) / S151 Officer 

 Update from working group on Review of 
the ToR’s 

S151 Officer 

 Appointment of Powys County Council to 
undertake Fraud Investigation Work 

S151 Officer 

 Annual Fraud Programme Update TBC 

 
Monitoring the recommendations of SWAP 
following audits. 

Alastair Woodland, Assistant 
Director (SWAP) 

 
 

Page 30


	Agenda
	5 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021-22
	1b. SWAP SSDC 2021-22 Internal Audit Progress Update July 2021

	6 Audit Committee Forward Plan

